
 

 11 Exhibition Street 

Melbourne VIC 3000 

GPO Box 1994 

Melbourne VIC 3001 

Telephone: (03) 8661 7777 

International: (613) 8661 7777 

Facsimile: (03) 9655 0401 

Email: melbourne@fwa.gov.au 

 

02 August 2010 

Mr. Brian Henderson 
Branch Secretary 
Australian Education Union Victorian (Vic) Branch 
112 Trenerry Crescent  
Abbotsford VIC 3067  

Dear Mr. Henderson, 

RE: Financial report of the Australian Education Union Victorian (Vic) Branch for the year 
ended 31 December 2009 (FR2009/10303) 

I acknowledge receipt of the financial report of the Australian Education Union Victorian (Vic) 
Branch for the year ended 31 December 2009. The documents were lodged with Fair Work 
Australia on 19 July 2010.  

The financial report has now been filed. 

I have attached an addendum for your consideration in which I make comments to assist you 
when you next prepare a financial report. You are not required to take any further action in 
respect of the report lodged. 

If you wish to discuss any matters further, I can be contacted on (03) 8661 7926 or via email 
erin.bulluss@fwa.gov.au. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
 

 
Erin Bulluss 

Tribunal Services and Organisations 

Fair Work Australia 

Email: erin.bulluss@fwa.gov.au 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Addendum to the Financial Report for the Australian Education Union Victorian (Vic) 
Branch for the year ended 31 December 2009 (FR2009/10303) 

The following comments are made to assist you when you next prepare a financial report. 

1. Committee of Management Statement: reference to section 270 of the ROA Schedule 

Paragraph (a) contained within the Committee of Management Statement states that ‘the 
financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the Industrial Registrar for 
the purposes of section 270 of the ROA Act”. The reference to section 270 of the ROA Schedule 
is incorrect. The correct reference is to section 253 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) 
Act 2009.  

2. Committee of Management Statement: financial statements and notes comply with the 
Australian Accounting Standards 

Reporting Guideline 25(a) requires that the Committee of Management Statement include a 
declaration by the committee of management as to whether in the opinion of the committee of 
management the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting 
Standards. The following wording would satisfy this requirement:  

 “The Committee of Management declares in relation to the GPFR that in its opinion: 

(...) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting 
Standards” 

3. Required disclosures: contributions to and from other reporting units of the 
organisation. 

Reporting Guideline 15 requires that where another reporting unit of the organisation is the 
source of a cash inflow or the application of a cash outflow, such cash flow should be separately 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and show the name of the reporting unit 
concerned. 

It is my understanding that the Australian Education Union Victorian (Vic) Branch is required 
under Federal Rule 11(2)(a) of the Australian Education Union to pay monies ‘...to the Federal 
Fund in respect of each financial member of the Union attached to that Branch...as a capitation 
fee.’ Any such fees should be disclosed either in the income statement or the notes to the 
financial statements, and should include the name of the reporting unit (i.e. Australian Education 
Union).  

Note 23 contains an item of disclosure entitled “Affiliation fees”. If this item refers to fees made to 
the AEU then disclosures as outlined above need to be made. If this item refers to affiliations to 
external organisations, then item 11(d) of the Reporting Guidelines has been satisfied (item 11(d) 
requires disclosure of expenses regarding periodic subscriptions in respect of affiliation to any 
political party or industrial organisation). 

 



-AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
V .I c t 0 r I. an Branch 112 Trenerry Crescent Abbotsford 3067 

PO Box 363 Abbotsford 3067 

telephone: 03 9417 2822: 1800 013 379 fax: 03 9417 6198 web: www.aeuvic.asn.au email: melbourne@aeuvic.asn.au 

21 June 2010 

Industrial Registrar 
Australian Industrial Registry - Organisations Branch 
GPO Box 1994S 
MELBOURNE Vic 3001 

Dear Madam/Sir 

Re: Financial Documents for the Australian Education Union Victorian 
Branch for the Year Ended 31 December 2009 

The full report was presented to Branch Council at its n:1eeting on 18 June 2010. 

I am now lodging the full report together with the Secretary's Certificate. 

Yours sincerely 

Brian Henderson 
Branch Secretary 

G :\wpdocs\admin \general\accounts\AIRFINDOCS.doc 



ABN: 44673398674 

AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
V .I c t 0 r .Ian 8 ran c h 112 Trenerry Crescent Ab~atsford 3067 

PO Box 363 Abbotsford 3067 

telephone: 03 9417 2822: 1800 013 379 fax: 03 9417 6198 web: www.aeuvic.asn.au email: melbourne@aeuvic.asn.au 

Certificate of Secretary or other Authorised Officer 
(s268 of Schedule lB Workplace Relations Act 1996) 

I Brian John Henderson being the Branch Secretary of the Australian Education Union 
Victorian Branch certify: 

* 

* 

* 

that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full report referred to 
in s268 of the RAO Schedule; and 

that the full report was provided to members on 28 May 2010; and 

that the full report was presented to a meeting of the committee of 
management, being the AEU Victorian Branch Council of the reporting unit on 
18 June 2010; in accordance with ction 266 of the RAO Schedule. 

Signature: , 
(Branch Secretary) 

Date: f 1 1 6 1 .:<.. o 1 o 

G:\wpdocs\admin\general\accounts\Cert of Sec.doc 
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Principal Activities 

OPERATING REPORT FOR THE 2009 FINANCIAL YEAR 
AEU VICTORIAN BRANCH 

The schools sectors were involved in two major activities. The first was the "TAFE for All" 
campaign aimed at overturning the State Government's "reforms" to the TAFE system. The 
campaign involved visiting Secondary schools with a high proportion of students that go to 
TAFE destinations to inform them of the significant cost imposts they would face by enrolling 
in TAFE In addition we met with Careers teachers to let them know about the changes 
which would have an impact on the advice they .gave to students considering a TAFE 
course. 

In primary schools the union ran a strong campaign to get more resources and time for 
schoOls to implement the P to 2 online testing, which was introduced early in the year after 
schools had completed their planning for the school year. 

In the TAFE sector the union als.o campaigned against the State Government's Skills 
Reforms through the "TAFE4AII Campaign". As part ofthe paid and unpaid media campaign, 
every TAFE ,Institute Jn the State was vi$ited and meetings of students were held to inform 
them of the impact of the chamges. The campaign alao included two tele:vision commercials 
which highlighted increased TAFE enrolment fees. Those, commerCials were aired on 
regional and metropolitan tv stations at varfo.us ·times throughout the cyear. The campai!jJn 
raised a great deal of pUblic opposition to the State·Government~s chaRges. 

The AEU ha.s continued its efforts to get Disability members a pay increase through 
pressuring Employer representatives to negotiate. _The AEU also met with Minister lisa 
Neville and DHS urging them to intervene. As a result of the contirnued blocking .of getting 
Agreements~ the ,unian then met with various other unions who also have coverage of 
disability workers to discuss the possibility 'Of achieving a memorandum of understanding 
with tti\e employer peak bodies which would urge employers to pass on 3.25% pay inarease 
backdated to July 2009. The AEU has coverag~ of approximately 88 centres where 
members are covered under part 1 of the award. 

Memb.ets under Part 2 of the, Award are In a similar position with many of the Disability 
Worl<;srrops having' no current agreement .or an e~pir:ea agreement As these centres are 
federally funded 'it has been harder than expected to getthem into the hegotiatlng ·arena. 
The AEU has oontihwed to push the ¥arious ernployers,lo negdtiate relevant and appropr]ate 
agreements but with little success. 

As a result of the situation in the Disability sector~ late in 2009 the AEU met with s~veral 
other unions and agreed to participate as an Applicant 1n a Pay Equity campaign for all 
disah>llity workers. in 2010. · 

In our Early Childhood Sector the union was in negotiations with the e.mployers around a 
new ".enterprise agr:ee)11ent. Additional presst~re was placed on the time lines Jar reach}hg 
agreement .as a result of the lntroducfiom of a new State Government wages :poUcy. 
Ultimately, twc agreements were reached one coverlng teachers ~nd assist,~nts in the 
community sector :and one covering teachers and ass'istants Jn the Local ·Government area. 
The AEU will continue to push for agreements in similar terms for teachers and assistants in 
early intervention and associated programs. 

The following .sig niflcant submissions were lodged during the year: 

• State Budget Submission 2009 M 2010 February, 2009; 
• Healthy Living and Schools Inquiry Victorian Parliamentary Inquiry; 
• DEE CD Review ofAiternative Education Programs. 



Significant resources continue to be devoted to our continuing Public Education campaign in 
an attempt to maximise the political importance of Public Education, particularly in relation to 
the Victorian Government's 2009 State Budget. 

Recruitment 
In 2009 we maintained strong recruitment levels as the following table demonstrates. 

Jan Feb Mar Aptil NlaY June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL 
2009 808 1 020 910 609 721 762 599 663 597 598 530 48 7865 

Financial Affairs 
The union continues to prosper with growing membership levels, supplementary sources of 
income and more efficient management of the nrganisation. 

In 2009 we continued to hold -at least $5 million in short term dep.osits .($4.4 million at years 
end) and cash. 

In 2009 the net loss from ordinary activities was$ 569,682 compared to a net profit of $521, 
913 in 2008. On the income side, membership subscriptions, inch,1ding PEG levies, 
increased by over $1.6 million. Interest received decreased by over $Cl1 miJJJo:n. {}n the 
expense side, legal costs increased $0.28 million, depreciation :by ·over $0:2 million following 
substantiar investmenton the membership data bas.e system an~ commiJriiQatlonequipmenf. 
Salt:lries and related cot?ts increased by over $0.9 millioh. Membership Services· :costs 
increased by over $2.6 million mai11ly. related to out active oreoruitment policies. The cost of 
the initial recruitment will 'be recouped over the next two years and with tighter expenditure 
c.ontrols we should see the budget return to surplus. 11"1 aeldition Membership ·services also 
increased in pa·rt due to the payouts to membe·rs affeCted by the Victorian · bLJshfires, Thls 
assistance amounted to $0A7 niilllon., which because of the circumstances was not 
budgeted tor. 

The TFV Building was vaii,Jed at $1435 million 111 the last valuation prior to the global 
financial crisis .and is·due tot>e revalued in 2010. ··· 

Put in context, our current cash assets remain at about 5 months operating expenses. ln my 
opinion it ·is Vital we 'grow the cash b'ase· to at least 6 montbs operating expenses and 
preferably 12 months pperatlng expenses. Our cash r:eserves are sufficient to cover staff 
entitlements such as annual leave and long service leave out that would not leay~ .I)}U.ch 
cash in th.e .bank. We are achieVing very consistent and ;gopo membersblp growth and W)th 
continuing prudent financial management, cash .reserves will,continue to increase overtutore 
years. It is importanrthat any changes hi staffing. levels c.an be sustained oy a grovy(n in the 
memb~rship,base. · 

Right Of Resignation 
Resignation from membership and terminiation of eligibility for membership is regulated by 
Federal Branch Rule 17. In keeping with that rule, AEU Victorian Branch Councif, at its 
meeting. rreld ·on Sat~;~rday 24 March, 2001 adopted a policy Tn respect .of refunds of 
membership dues when members resign. · 

The policy'.is: 

1. When a member lodges a resignation from the union il will take effect from the date of 
the letter or the date specified in that letter~ whichever is later 

2. Where a member's resignation from the union is received but not processed at the time .. 
no disadvantage will be applied When the resignation is J3rOcessed. 

3. Branch Executive is al)thorised to vary this P,Oiicy in exceptional circumstances anti upon 
written request. 



4. That this policy be highlighted in the AEU News in the first edition each year. 

It is imperative that the union receives formal notification when members resign from the 
union. 

Superannuation Trustees/Directors 
The following members of our Branch Council are trustees of a superannuatian entity or an 
exempt public sector superannuatlon scheme: 

Dean R GLARE 
Barbra A NORRIS 

Both are Directors of the Emergency Services Superannuation Board (Victoria) 

The following members of our Branch Co~.;.~ncil are directors of a company that is a trustee of 
a superannuation entity or an exempt public sector superannuation scheme: 

Jennifer A CASSIDY to June .30, 2009 
Christine. M. STEWART from July 1, 2009 
Barbra A NORRIS 

The latter two are Directors of VicSuper. 

The criterion that makes the three eligible to stand for election to both bodies is that they are 
contributors to those superannuation schemes. Periodically elections .for Director positions 
are conducted by the Victorian Electoral Commission ana all tbhtributors are eligible to 
nominate. A ballot of all contributors decides the positions. 

Prescribed Information 
(a) We started the year with 38,371 members and ended with 42l834, members Which 

represent an increase of 4,4.63 (11.63%~ members in the t~porting year. 

The following figures indicate the growth of the organisation on a Sector basis from 1 
January 2009 to 3"1 December 2009: 

Primary 
Secondary 
Early Childhood 
TAP 
TOTAL 

15.49% 
c5,9°/ci 

64.07°/o 
.3.89% 
11.6.3% 

or 
or 
or 
·or 
or 

2,S80 members 
8.80 members 
724 .rnE?mhers 
179.members 
4,463 members ·' . . . 

(b) Af31/12/2009 the reporting uriitemployed. 84 persons which translated to 72.2263 
.equivalent full~time employees {54 Full time, 18.9114 Parttim~). 



Members of Branch Council in 2009: 

No No No 
ELECTORATE per PRIMARY per SECONDARY per EARLY 

elect elect elect CHILDHOOD 
orate i orate orate· 

SOUTH EAST 1 Brookes, Gillian Ana.stasiou, Tas Bird, Jo(from 
Doncaster/ 5 ·Cassidy, Andrew 4 Angus, Cheryl 7 19.6.0.9) 
Warring a! C0oke, Jean Cookson, Wendy (from Lappen, Debbie 
Inner East Cosmano1 20.2.09) (resigned 13.8.09) 
Greater Waverley Michaeh(from Steane, Valerie Raymond, Jane 

20.2.09 resigned Tripp, Mafita {resigned Vessey, Marian {from 
21.6.09}) 23.1.09) 23.5,07) 
H~lden, Andrea Evans, Bruna (from 

! 30.!t08) 
SOUTHEAST2 Andrews, 3 Carlos, Bronwyn (from Kapoor, 1\/fadhu (from 
Outer Easter 5 Deborah Ashton, 24.10.08) 5 24.10.08) 
Yarra Valley Steve De 'Gama, David Lyons, Maree 
Knox /Dand~noog C!3sSfdy, .Jenny O'Brien, Eileen 
Ranges ML!r.phy, Brendan {resigned 26.6.09) 

(from 14.~.oa~ 
Pontin, Clive 

SOUTH EAST3 4 Lylak, Nicole 4 Crotty, Judith 4 Geritz (Ayliffe), 
Berwick1Pakeflham/ Rotbstadt, Kay Glare, Dean Grace (resigned 
Cranbourne/Wonth Sharp, Kathy Hurlihg1 Angela {from 30.7'.09) 
aggi Vrondou, Chris 14.03.08) Murr9¥, Ann 
South Eastern Scott, Ann (from Patrick, Sue 

24:10.08) 
Quinn, Julie (from 
_)5.5.0~ 

SOUTHEAST4 e Farrelly, Rita 4 Bryce, Andy 8 Anderson; :susan 
Long beaehlMoorab Luebbers, Dehehey, Garole (from ·23.·5,07) 
bin Barbara Patton, Felix (from Avard, Helander 
Frankston Svlgos,. Russell '20:2.09) Barbuto, Doreen 
Peninsula Stokes, Jennifer Seltman, Heidi ,Simpkin, Jill 

rresign~ed:24:1 .o~~ ! Williams, Karen 
Woods, Wayne .(from 2~t5A)7) 

'Peifer, Megan (from 
1'5.5.09) 

NORTHWEST1 Norris; Barbra Butler, Mick ·pu~gerald, Susan. 
Diamond Valley 4 Ghiotti) Beth 5 'Finlay, Kirsten 6 James., blar:re 
Latrobe/Plenty Cohen, Daniel Fry, John Nunn, Josette (from 
Inner City (Jrom 12.9.08) Merkenich, Mary 14.3.08} 

A.tkinsoni An Rundle, Norrian Ralton, Stephanie 
thony -(from (from 23:8.07) 
12.9i081 

NORTHWEST2 D'unean, Briley Lovelock, Chris Grarock, Max 
Inner West 3 Foster.-Brady, 3 Peterson, Andrew 4 
Werribee Anastasia (from Maureen O'Fiaherty 

19;6,09) (from 14.03.08) 
Menhenhet, 
Shelley (f:r:om 
30.11.07) 
Winton, Kathy 
{from 23.8-.07 
Resigned 
20.2.09) 



No No No~ 

ELECTORATE per PRIMARY per SECONDARY per EARLY 
elect elect elect CHILDHOOD 
orate orate orate 

NORTH WEST 3 Pontikis, Mary- Breen, Geoffrey Ahyick, Voula (from 
Broad meadows 5 Anne 4 Cook, Philip 5 24.10.08) 
Maribyrnong Pope, Kevin O'Neill, Patrick Bourke, Nicole (from 
Sunbury Walker, Peter (resigned 2A.09) 14.3.08) 
Melton (from 30.5;08} D'Ortenzio, Marino O'Dwyer, Diat:Jne 

Woodward, (from 23.8.07} 
Rebecca 
Pamela Perry 
{from 8.8;08) 

BARWON SOUTH Augeri nos, Crawford ,-Megan Barker, Kristine 
WEST1 2 Andrew 2 

1 

ManteJii, Ubaldino 3 
Geelo.ng Crockart, lan 

BARWON SOUTH Anderson, Anne Martina, Peter Davis, Gayle 
WEST2 2 Clift, David 2 Martin Rieniets (from 2 
Co lac 14.03.08) 
Ham11ton1Portland 
Warrnambool 
CENTRAL Farquhar, Aitken, Catherine Embling, Bronwyn 
HIGHLANDS 2 Reginald 1 2 Wain, Monica 
WIMMERA 1 Schenk, Henny 
Ballarat 
CENTRAL 1 Kuchel, Robyn 1 
HIGHLANDS 1 
WIMMERA2 
Stawell 
Horsham 
GIPPSLAND 1 1 Hussey, Mick 1 Humphries, Jessie 2 Brady, Lynne 
West Gippsland Ann 
South Gippsland 
GIPPSLAND2 1 Stringer, Angela 1 Ross Jackson (from 1 
Latrobe Valley 1 .8.07) 
GIPPSLAND 3 1 Nicholas, Ross 1 Kell, Matthew 1 
Sale (from'23.5.07) 
East Gippsland 
GOULBURN 1 Cunningham, 1 Patton, Felix (resigned 2 Heaps, Jennifer 
NORTH EAST 1 Colleen (from 19.1.09} 
Ben alia 23.5.07) (resigned Brookes, Jennifer 
Seymour 27.1.09) (from 20.:1 •. 0.9} 
GOULBURN 1 Coghlan, Kellie 1 Schear, Walder (from 1 Kirby, Juineta 
NORTHEAST2 (from 30. 11. 07) 30~5.08 resigned 
Kyabram 26,2.09}) 
Shepparton 
GOULBURN 1 Dews, Merr:llyn 1 Morton, Patti 1 
NORTH EAST3 (from 23,5.07) 
Wodot:Jga 
Wangaratta 
LODDON 2 Lewis, Marg (from 2 Manning, Jack 1 
CAMPASPE 14,3.08.} Jan Boyle (from 
MALLEE 1 Barbara Reidy 14:03.02) 
Bendigo- (from 8.8.08) 
Mary borough 
Casttemaine 
LODDON 1 De Morton, Phillip 1 1 
CAMPASPE 
MALLEE2 
Bendigo/Echuca 
Swan Hill 
LODDON 1 Bell, John~~{f.rom 1 Donnelly, James 2 Groszmann, 
GAMPASPE 14.3.08} Aritionefte (Krystal} 
MALLEE 3 (resigned 16.2.09) 
Mil dura Hart, SGphie 

Wenborn, Lynn (from 
20:3.09) 



No No No 
ELECTORATE per PRIMARY per SECONDARY per EARLY 

elect elect elect CHILDHOOD 
orate ,orate orate 

ALLIED SUB- 5 Bush, Kate (from 3 Davis, Alison ,(from 
SECTOR 19.6.09) 19"6.09~ 

Foenander, Jan Henry, Jo 
Ganosis, Sylvia Macardy, Rae 
Lahiff, Altda (from Vojtek, Barbara 
30.11.07 resigned (resigned 8A .. 09) 

! 11.5.09)) ' 
• Tenson, Katrina 
i Wright, Joanrna 



TAFE, DISABILITY AMES- SECTOR COUNCILLORS 

No. per 
TAFE SUB SECTOR workplace Councillors 

Ballarat University 1 Joanne Fogarty 

Bendigo Reglonallnstitute of TAFE 1 Grell_ Barel~ 

Box Hill Institute ofTAFE 2 Fergus Hudson, .Peter Ryan 

Central Gippsland Institute of TAFE 1 Peter Sheehan 

Chisholm Institute of TAFE 3 
Stephen ·Risher. 
AlexNissen {from 14.03.08} 
Peter Malonejfrom 14.03.01!) 

East Gippsland Community Institute of 
TAFE 1 Ann FUrpt}y 

Gordon Institute of TAFE 2 
Maik Hyde 
Rosemary Crowejres·ig_ned 19.6.09) 

Goulburn Ovens Institute ofTAFE 1 ~Marlo Varricchio (resigned 4.1.09) 
Barbara Vam Leestffrom 20.:3 .. 09,) 

Holmesglen Institute of TAFE 2 
·Helen Wiggins 
Steve Jrelandjfmm 19.6.0~ 

Kangan/Batman Institute of TAFE 2 
Michaet D_eXtilie; 
Rob (3o11h.er (from 24.1 0.98) 

Northern Melbourne Institute of TAFE 2 
GtaigJOi'les 
Yolanda !ngley-Crawley (from 14.03.08) 

RM IT - TAFE Division 3 
Russell Ed is, 
Mar;yCollins 
Peter Murpny tfrorn 14.03.08} {Fesigned 
11.;2.09) 
Kirsty Gorter (from 20.3.09) 

South West I 11stitute of TAFE 1 Stuart .Stepben 
Sunraysia Institute of TAFE 

1 
Hay Capmore (from 24.10.08) 

Swinburne Uni of Technology- TAFE 
2 

FranktaWior 
Division George lJI.ehla (from 18_.:7.0~) 
Victorian University .of Technology - TAFE 

3 
Peter Mol'aiUs .• £resigned 24:2 . .09) 

Div Paul Ashtbtl 1 :(resigned 19:1 :09} · 
Leanne Glovet~Riohards lresigned ·26.'2.09} 
.John Banjanirt:(fr.om 20.3:Q9) 
Norm OoUing'ffrom 15:5.09) 
Derek Walter {from 15.5,09) 

William .Angliss Institute of TAFE Maryloulse"Chapman {fmm 14J)3.0.8) 
1 

Wodonga Institute of TAFE 
1 

I an L::tck(fromZ.'5.08) 

DISABILITY SERVICES 8 
·Carmel Coogan 
~en·ae C~;~rornins . . 
Kathleen Richardson (from 8.8.08) 
Terry .HUTley{from 8.8 .. 08) 
Ben Owen {from 8.8.:08) 
Amanda Wickham(from 8,8;08) 

AMES 2 2 Vacant positions 



AEU VICTORIAN BRANCH 
BRANCH COUNCIL 2009 

Entitlement: 
All Primary Sector Councillors 
All Secondary Sector Councillors 
TAFE & Adult Provision Sector-

- Disability Servjces """ 2 
- AMES sub-sector - 1 

Early Childhood Secter -
Elected Leadership 

i AFE Sub-Sector (8 positions} 
CROWE Rosemary 
HYDE Mark 
JONES Craig 
SHEEHAN Peter 
VARRICCHIO Ma~i.o 
3 Vacancies 

54 
46 
11 (incl Disb and AMES quota) 

4 
12 

Disability S.ervices Sub-Se.ctor (2 positions} 
CUMMINS Renae . 
1 Vacancy 

AMES Sub.-Sectot {1. ·position) 
1. Vacancy · 

Early Childhood Sector 
GERfTZ Grace 
GRAROCK. Max 
MURRAY Ann 
O'DWYER Dianne 

Branch Officers 
Mary Bluett, Ann Taylor, Brian Henderson, Christirie Stewart,, Peter Steele,, 
Carolyn Clancy, Meredith Peace; Justin Mullally; Shayne Quinn, Martel Menz:, 
Gillian Robertson, Rob .stewart 

Brian Henderson 
Branch Secretary 
13 May, 2010 

G:\wpdocs\leader8hip\bhend\Fair Work Aystralia\2010\13 May, 2010 OPERATING ;REPORT FOR THE 2009 FINANCIAL 
YEAR doc 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 44 673 398 674 

INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Revenue 
Other income 
Changes ln inventories of finished goods and work in 
progress 
Raw materials and consumables used 
Employee benefits expense 
Freight and cartage 
Occupancy expenses 
Admlhistration expenses 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Comrrtls$ions paid 
lmpaJrment of property, plant and equipment 
Finance costs 
OthePexpenses 
Share uf net profits of associates and joint ventures 
Profit before income tax 
Profit attributable to members ofthe entity 

Note 

2 
2 

3 

3 

2009 
$ 

17,323,188 
226 

{8;920,751} 

(603,131) 
(8,061,294) 

(283,426) 

(24,494) 

{569,682) 
~569,6822 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

2008 
.$ 

15,940,930 
533 

(7,962,167) 

(747,611) 
{6;591 ,Q74) 

(66,675) 

(51,823) 

52.1,913 
521,913 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 44 673 398 674 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2009 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Casb and cash equivalents 
Trade .and otber receivables 
Other current asset~ 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON•CORR~NT ASSETS 
Trade and other receivables 
Financial asset~ 
Plant ahd eqolpment 
Other non-bl!ttent ,.assets 
TOTAL NON~CURRENT ASSETS 
TOTALASS.ETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 
OtherfinanclalliabUifles 
Sbor:t-term ;provisions 
TOTAL GliRRENT LIABillTIES 

NON~CURRENT 'LIABILITIJ:S 
Thade~and other payables 
Long..,term provisions 
TOTAL NON~.CURR.ENT LIABILITIES 
tOTAL LIABILITIES 
NET ASSETS 

EQUITY 
Reserves' 

Note 

6 
7 
8 

7 
9 
10 
8 

11 
12 
13 

11 
13 

2009 
$ 

5,397,528 
38~;979 
2'67;'185 

6;046,6lil2 

1.;539,796 
8,000;00() 

712;·860 

10,252~6'56 
16,299;'34£{ 

1,423~21\l. 

2,046,970 
3,470,181\1 

3,470,1$0 
12,829,168 

2008 
$ 

5,600,{').65 
950,440 
240,.616 

'6,771,621 

1,770,21"8 
8,()00,000 

126,829 

:gi897,047 
1.6,668,668 

11438,907 

1,830,911 
S;2tl9.,818 

3,269,81'8 
13~398,850 

Retain~d ~arr:lfngs 
TOTAL EQUITY 

12,829.,16$ 13,398;850 
t2,629J6$ 1a;ses;a5o 

The .accpmpanYtng notes Jortn part af these financial statements. 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 44 673 398 674 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Balance at 1 January 2008 
Profit attributable to members 
Transfers to and from reserves: 
- general reserve 
Transfers from retained profits 
Sub-total 
Dividends paid or provided for 
Balance at 31 D.ecember 2008 
Loss attributable to members 
Revaluation increment !(decrement) 
Sub~total 

Divldehds paid or provided for 
Balance at 31 Oecember 2009 

Note 
Retained 
Earnings 

$ 
12,876,937 

521,913 

13,:398,850 
(569,682) 

12,829,168 

12,'829,168 

The accompanyiflg notes form part of these financial 'Statem.ents. 

General 
Reserves 

$ 

Total 

$ 
12,876,937 

521,913 

13,398,850 

13,398,850 
(569,682) 

12,829,168 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 44 673 398 674 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to Suj:)plier.s and employees 
Dividends ·received 
I nterestreceived 
Finance -costs 
Income tax paid 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from .saJe ofproperty, plahtand equipment 
Proceeds from sale ofirtvestments 
Purchase of:property; ph;mtand equlpme.nt 
Purchase ofinvestments 
Loans to related parties 

payments made 
- pro~ee.ds from repayments 
Net cash used in investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING AC1'1VITIES 
Proceeds from issue ef shares 
Ptoceeds fmm borrowings 
RepE\ymeht of borrowings 
Dividends paid 
Net cash pr<Wided by {use.d in) financing activities 
Net :(decrease) increase in easb hetd 
Cash at·beglimlng of fimmctal year 
Cash at end. of financial year 

Note 2009 
$ 

2008 
$ 

17,568,951 15,386,830 
{1'7,380;,453) (14,628,697) 

247,274 375,627 

17fa) __ 4::...:. 3:.=5;.;:..,7~72=-· _1.:..l.'::...:13:.=3.!:..,7..::.60;:;_. 

6 

226 

(869,4§7) 

23Q;.422 
(638:809} 

(2.03;037) 
5,;600;$65 
5;:\197=528 

.533 

(71,140) 

46,140 
(24,467) 

The accompanying .notes fonn part of these financial statements. 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH ABN: 44 673 398 674 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

The financial report is for the entity Australian Education Union- ViGtarian Branch. This arganlsation isre9lstere(! under !he Fair Wark (Registered Organisations) Act 
2009 and domiciled in Austrafia. In accoraanc:e wllh the Act the Unlan Is a body corporate and has perpetual succession. By virtue of this method of incorporation, the 
Union is not subject to the Corporations Act '2001. 

Note 1 Statement of SJgnlflcant Accounting Policies 

)3asis·of Preparation 
The financial rE)port 1s a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, including Australian Accauntrng 
Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements ;of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the requirements Imposed by the rep.orti119 gufdelioes of Sectian 
255, Division 3, Part:3 of Chapter 8 oflhe Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, 

Australian Accounting S)andards set out accounting policies tllat the MSB has conCluded would result In a flnancla\ report containing relevant and reliable Information 
aboutlr!,lnsacticns, evenis and conditions. Compliance wlth Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the financial statements and notes also oomply with 
International Financial Reporting Standards. Material accounting policies adopted In the preparation of !his finahclal report are presented below and have been 
{)onslstently applied unl!!l.SS otherwise stated. 

The financial report bas been prepared on ao accruals basis and is based on .historical costs, modified, Where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of .selected 
non-current assets, fil1anciaf assets and linancialliabilitles. 

(a) Income Tax 
Australian:Eudcation Union Victorian Branch is a trade union and no provision .for income tax is necessary .as trade unions are exempt from income tax under 
section 23(t)·of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936. 

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment 
Each class of properly, plant and·equipment is carried at c;ost or falrva!ue as Indicated fess, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment 
lo.sses. 

Pl.ant and equipment 
Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and Impairment Jo.sses. 

T:he oar[\ilng -q.inol.lr'lt ofplarit and equlpment'is reviewed annually to ensure It is natin excess of Ilia recoverable amount fro.m these assets. The recoverable 
.amount i.s .a,ssesse.d;on the basis of the expeQted net cash .!lo.ws,.t[lat will be.recelv.ed from Jhe assets' employment and sUbsequent dispo.sal. The expected net cash 
flows have 't>een·discounted to their present values in tletern11ning recoverable amounts; 

Depreciation 
The depreciable amount of all fiXed assets, excluding freehOld land, is depreciated on a straight-line'basls over the asset's useful life to the entity commencingfrom 
the Ume the asset Is held ready lot use. 

The depreciation rateS' us.ed for each.t;lass of depreciable assets are: 

Class. of Plxed Asset Pepteclation Ratll 

Ptal'lt and equipmeht 
MemtrershipcDalabase 
Communclatiohs Equipment 

10-40'% 
30% 
30% 

Th.e assets' residual values. and useful lives are reviewed, and .adjusted'lfapproprlate, at each ·tralance sheet date. 

An asset~s carrying amo.unt is Written dOWn :lmml;ldfately .lo'lts recoverable amount if·the asset's .carrying amount isgreatertban its estimated recoverable amount. 

Gairrs and losses on disposals are detei'iliined by comparing proceeds wf(h the car(Ying amo!Jnl. These gai'ls or los.ses a!e 'in~ludl!'d in the lne<>me statement. When 
revalued.assets are !>old, amountsJf)cli.lded in the revaiUE!tion reserve relating ~ that asset are transferr!ild to. rt;!!a)ned .. earriings. 

(t;) Leases 
Leases of 1ixeil assets where, substantially all 1M risks and beneflts lncldental to the ownership of the asset, but no.Hhe legal ownership .that. are transferred to the 
entity E!te 'Classified as finance leases. 

Flnante leases are capitalised by recording an asset ana a liability at the lower of the amounts aqualto.Jhe.'fairv.aLue ofihe lease!J .. propeny or the presen\valuecoi 
the minimum lease P'E!Ymelits,lncludlng any g·uarantee(l residualvalues, Lease pa)'mehtsare .allocated beiWE16n·lheredtJction of !he lease Uablli1v and.ihe·lease 
interest expen!!'e.forlhe period. 

Leased assets are depreciated 911 'a straight-line basi~QYerthe shatter oftbefr estimated Qs~ui lives or .thl:f lease tr>rm. 

Lease payments for operatingJeases, where substantially all the ·risks and benefits remafnwilh the lesspr, are charged· as .e*perises on ,a stra!gtlt-line basis over the 
lease:.term. · 

(d) Ftnanciallnstrurrie.lltl:l 

Initial Recognition 11nd Measurement 

Financial assets.and financjal !iabillljes are recpgnlsedw.heo ·the entity beCQm.es a party to th.e COfllractua.J P.f()llislons jo·~fle im;trumer:tl. For financJaLassets, t.liisis 
equivalentto !lie date tbat:the enii!Y commllsJI$eli io·eitherpurchase orsefl'lhe.a~set.(t:e. trade daieaccountihg is adopted}. 

Financial instruments are Initially ·measured aHairvalue plustrensactionsccO.Sls exoopt where the instrument is .classified 'at.fa!r value through profit or loss'inWhioh 
case transactlo.n costs are expensed to·profit or:loss Immediately. 

Classification and Subsequent Measurement 

Finance Instruments ;l.re.sut)sequently measured at either fair v<~lue, amortisetl cosl using tlie.effectlve interest raie rnethodcor c.ost ,fZair,va/IJe represents the 
amount for Which an asset could be exchanged or a liability setlled, between knowledgeable,willfng.parties. Where available, qlJoted prices in an active market are 
useu to det.ermlne falrvalue. In othercirCJJrnstances. v.aluatiotl techniques arecadqpted. 

Amortised cost Is ealculated as (I) thEf amount alwhich the financial asset or flnancialli«bflity is measured aUrlf!ialrecogl)ltion {0) less principal repayments (iii) 
plus or minus tbe cumulative arporusation ofthe iilfferenca, li'an):, between the a.mount.!nitially reocignisadand ihe maturityCJrnount:ealcul~ted using the .eff<!ctive 
interestmetflod; ·ar\d (ivc) less:anyteditotlon fo({mpalrmelit. 

The effective interestmethod is used to.al!ocale"l.nterestlncome or interest expense over the relevant period and Js,equMilentto the rate that exacUy discounts 
estimated future·casb paYcment~"or receipts;(lncludlng fees, trensaction tests and other ptemiums or dlstountsrthrough the expected life (orwhen tlil~> canndt be 
reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the finanCial insln.ttneiit to the net carrying amount of the. financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to expected Juture 
net casb !lows will necessitate an ad]ustrnehHo the carrying value With a .consequential reco.gnition of an inoome o'r-expense in pro.fit or loss. 

(I) .Financial assets at falrvallie 'through profit or lo.ss 
Finandal as~t~ts are plasgified at ~fairvalvJl thro1.,1gh pro1ltorl!)ss' wh,!)o fhey ar.t~.el!hesMid for !raping far tile purpos;:of sh.orl tesm proflhtaking; ile(Jvatives,notheld 
tor hedging, purposes, or when they <Jre desfgnatetf1:\s such to avoid an <t9oountingmismatch or to enable performance, evaluation where a group o.f'financial·asss.ts 
Is managed by key managemenl personnel on afalr value basis in accordance wiib-a documented tis~ management odnvesiment strategy, Such assets are 
subsequently measured at fair vl;Jiue with changes in carrying value being inc!Udl!din profit or loss. 



(ii) Loans and receivables 

AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH ABN: 44 613 398 674 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAl.. STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 I::>ECEMBER 2009 

Lo~os .and receivable.s are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determlnab!e P"ilYmenls tl1a! are .not qll¢ted in an active marker and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. 

(Iii) Held-to-maturity investments 
Held4o-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets !hal have.fixed maturiUes a(!d fixed or determinable payments, and it is the entity's Intention to hold 
these investments to maturity. They are subsequenfly measured <~I amortised cost. 

(lv) Avalla!>le"for•sale financial assets 
Avail<~ble-Jcir-s<~le flnanciaiJJssets are non-derivative linanclal:assel$ th<;~t art; either not papable,of being classified intoo.thei' «ategorles of financial assels<lue to 
their nature, .er they are.d.eslgnated as such by management They compriS.e investments hdhe·equity of.alher entities where there.Js neither a fixed maturity nor 
fixed or determinable payments. · 

(v) Financial !labilities 
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~excluding finanolal guarantees) are~ubsequenllymeasured at amortised cast. 

(v1) Fair Value 
Fair value Is determined based oo currentbid prices .for all quoted liwestments. \lalt.Jation techniqu~s-are applied Ia determine the fair value for all unlisted 
secontles, lnc!Uding·receot arm's length transactions, reference to similar instr.umenis and optfon pricing models, 

(e) Impairment of Asset~; 
At each reporting date, llle entity reviews the carrying values of Jts 1angible and Intangible assets to determine whell)er there Is :any indication that ihose assets have 
beEm1mpaired. If such an Indication exists, the Iecoverable .amount-of the assef,-being .the. higper of the asset's fair v~lue le$s cost~-to sell_ ami value in· use, is 
compan:!dto the asset's carrying value;,Any excess oHhe asset'$ oarry,ing valueoveflis.recover!lb)e ;;~m!)unt is expensed ld th~ Income statement. 

Impairment testing is performed annually for gpodwill and intangible assets with in(leflnite lives. 

Where [t Is not possible to estimate the r~vetable .amount of<m individual.asset, the enlity estimates the recoveratile amount .of the cash-gener<;~ting utiittowhich 
the asset belon:gs. 

Derecognltlon 
Financial assets are derecognlsed~liere ihe contfactual rights to recelptof cash flows exP,Ire·orth~·asserls tr~sfe!J'ed lo anolber P<!riy~wiu~rabY the entity no 
longer has any significant ·contliluin(llnvolvemenUn the risks and beneti!S';;J!lSPCiale<:J.witb the ass€!!. Finannlal .ljal:iiUfies at(!! derecogrfised where !be related 
obUgations are eitherdischargeq, cancelled or expire, Thedlfference'~Ei\ween·,the:~nying vaJue of the financiafliabilitY'extinguished or ll<!nsfeu!;ld tbariother party 
and the fair value of consideration paid~ Including the tran~fer of non-?asfuassets or itabilftlel! :assumecUs re~:ogrilse<Hn profit,orJoss. · 

(f) Intangibles 

Goodwill 
Goodwill is iriitially,recorded at !he amoilnfbywhieh the purchase piice fora bu'sine~s~; oombinil!ion eltceeds:the.falr valu~ attribute.d to \he interest In the nef fair 
value of;identlliable assets,llablllties and contingent liabU[Iles acquired 'atdate of acqvisl!iori, GoodiNill pl\acqul!lilign of ass.ocl~tes is incluc{ed liJ ;Investments in 
associates. Goodwill is tested annually for impai_rmimland c;~ffied, atcostless a,ccumuJateil JiriPainnent•IC>sses. 'Gains amJ. l0sses on the dfsposaJ..of ane-ntity. Include 
the harrying amount of:goodWill relatin~rto theeiitl\Y said, 

(g) Employee Ben.eflts 

Provision 1s made for the entity's·liilbillty for employee b~nefits arisir~Q lfo.m se!Vil:ll!.s ret~deted by·er:OpJoy_ees tp. balance dale. Employee b.enetllsth!lt are ewJ>cted to 
be settled within one year have been tneasuredatthe amounts .expe<;ted .\Q l!ej;J<~id woen th"e ilablli!yJs seftled,p!f.!s relate<! on:costs. Emplpyee:beoefit~.:p<!yabJe 
laterlhan ·ane year have 'been rtJe<;~sured c;~Lthe present \ialue o(-the'i:l.s!lmated·Wture .®sfi oliWows lob~ rn;;~defor'those ·benefits. 

(h) Provisions 
Prpvislons are reocig.nls.ed v;ihen the enti\y has <1 !~galqr ocilis[ructfve ol:lligalllm._ as ,a rpsqft of p.Q!lt event~. for wiJ!l$h'itls prqb.<Jble ihai <~n ,oulffow of ec::pnomlc 
bene~!& will resultarid ll'lat Qulf!ow oao IJe reii;;Jbly measured. Provisions. are m!!asured ,usigg the Oll.lllestimate of tbeca_mo~nfs re(IIJJreil .to settle the obligation at 
obalanc.e date. 

(i) Cash and Cash Equtv_alen.ts 
Cash anr;l O;;Jsh equivalents include-c;ls)l·on .hand, deposits held at call.witii bcirtKs, otnersho"rt"teritthigllJY liquid iiWestmentswith original :matutitles i:iftftiee months 
or less, and bouik.overdraJts: _E!<JO!< overdra(Is are·shown within.short-teun botrowin!Js"in curreht:liabilitri:ls:on the.t:lillance sbeet. 

U) Reven11e arid'Otner·lncome 
.Revenu~ tfom:membersblp su6s.crip!ions are recqgnlsed on art accruals basis. 

Revenue ftoltl thesale-ofgoods:ls recognised at tllep6int•of de livelY: as .tlils cortesponds1ollle:~?nster qfsl9iflfi~nt rlsl<sand rewards of:owner~hiR.<iflhe gaod~, 
aodthe.:cessatlon of all involvementin these:goods: 

·lnterest r.ev.enu.els recogr)ised·uslngthe effecllve:.i.nferest rate mettiod, whfcll;for!loatlngrate-fihancrar.asseis is the rateinheJeritlh the'lnstrumenl. Dtviaend 
fevenQi:t.Js recognised ,when .tl)e rigbt toJeceive adillldeor! ha:> been.esia!;llrsrre~. 

Revenue reCQ£Jnitlon relating to the ,provision oiServices is .determined with referenc~'totl)e :;t<~ge of completiC>f! of lhe transaction ~Mej)o~ng .daie anc~ where 
outcoroe.of the ·contract can be estimatedreliabty; Stage of ootripletion islli:~terml.riiicl wlt!i ffi!{~rf;)ri~ to tll_e sefl:'lcEispe!1otroe~ to.~afe <;~s-a percentageofto!al 
anllclpated ~ervlces to beoperformed. lJI.Ilferethe outcome oaroor!;ie estlmiJled r~lj~IM, reyenUel~·recogn16~!i:l·o:nly toliJe•exfe]ltthatrelate~h;!Xpenpfture'is. 
recoveral:ile. · 

All reveri_ue I~ Slated net of the amounl elf goods J;~nd service,s tax (Gs:n: 

(k) BorroWing Costs 
Borrowing costs directly atfributable to the aC)lvisition, construction or production of assets thatu~essarilytake a substantial periild oftlme tpprepare for t!)elr 
intended .use:ot:sale, :are added tO'th"e bostbfthose assets, Uiiti! Such tlitfe11S the assets are ~Qbi;tli!nti~lly iead)ifor lh~ir ln\ended~use or safe. 

AI( tither borrowtQg costs are recognised ln:lncorne In tfre period !n which lheyare.irvsurred_ 

(I) Goods and Serlilce.s Iax (GST:) 
Revenues, expenses. and assets.are·r.ecognlsed nelof the amount of GST, exc~jltwfieie the';;Jmpurit of GSTincU.rredl$'nofre(:ovefable from th!'l TaxOilice •. In 
these eir.Cumstance:s, .the GST is reoognlsed as pait-ofthe costof a!.;qtiisitlon of I he asse! or as part ofan Item oftlle axpense, R(!celval;>l_esand•payablel! In the 
balance sheetare shOwn·lncluslve ofGST. 

eash flows are-presented In t1:1e·oash flow statement on a .gross.basls, except for~thl'! GST component of inV.flstfng .am! financing activities, which are,disclosed as 
operating oa11h How~. 

(m) Comparative Figures 
Comparative figures nave been adjusted toconfoi:m to·changes ih presentation fortheC:urreht financial year where required by accoUJJ!ing standards or a&.a result 
of-changes ln a$ountltlg policy. · · 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH ABN: 44 673 398 674 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

(n} Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 
Key Estimates 
(I) Impairment 

Branch Council assess impairment at each reporting date by evaluation of conditions and events speciflc to the entity that may be Indicative of impairment 
t~ggers. Recoverable amounts ofrelevaot.assets are reassessed using value,in-use calculations which Incorporate various key assumptions. 

(O) New Accounting Standards for application in future periods 
The AASB .has Issued new, revised and amended standards and interpretations that have mandatory application dates for future reporting periods and which the 
entity has deCided not to ·early adppt. A discussi<:in of those future requirements and their impact on the entity Is as follows: 

• AASB 3: Business :Cofliblnatioils, MsB 127: Consolidaled and Separate Financial Statements, AASB 200B-$,:_Am<~ndments to Australi<~n Accounlil)g 
Standardsalising from·AASB a.andAASB 127 [AASB standards ~.2.4.5,7,101,107, 112,'H4,11il,12l,128, 131, 132,133; 134, 136, 1.37, 138 &13S l!nd 
lnterprebitiohs !l and 107] (appiJoable for annual reporting periods commencing from 1 July 200"9) end AASB 2noa:7: Amendments"loAus.tralian.Accouollng 
St<:uidar9s. _.Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate [ AASB 1, AAS8 1-18, _AASB ·121. AASB ~ 27 :and AASB ·136) 
(applicable for annuS~I reportio_g periods commencing from .1 ~anuary 2009). These Standards are appliCflble prospectively and so will pnly .affect relevant 
transactions ·and .conso!iqatlons .occurring from the dale of aJlplicallon, In this regard, Its lmp~;~ct on the entlty is not able to be determined. Ch~;~nges to 
accounting requirements:inelude: 

acqulsitlon-cosis1ncurred·in •a l:!usiness combination will no longer be booked to goodwill but Will be expensed .unless the -cost relates to issuing debt or 
e.qui!Y seC!jrrties 

- conllngetil consideration will be measured at fair value at the acquisition date and may only be provisionally accounted for during .a period of 12 months 
,after atqulsilion 

- .a.gain or-loss of control will require the previous ownership interests to be remeasured to.theirfair llalue 
- there shall be .no. gain or loss ·rrom transactions·affE!etlng a parent's ownership lnterest of a ·subsidiary with all transactions required to be accounted tor 

tbrough"equ!IY- '(th'is will not represent a Change to the entity's.poliGY) 
- dividends declaredcout of.precacquisition profits will not be deducted from the .cos.t of an investment but will be recqgliise.d as Income 
- ·impairment of iiWestments :in subsidiaries, joint ventures and assoGiates shall·be considered when a dMaend iS" paid qy the respectiVe lnves:tee 
- where there is in substance ·no change to el'ltilY interests, parent entities Inserted above e~isting,eritit[es sl)illl me.asuie tlle'cosfoflts investments allhe 

canyin'g amount oflfs share oflhe equity items shown Jn the llalaiiee sl]eet_or the orlginal.parent attlie d.ate C!f reorgattlsatioti 

" MS B a: •Operating Segments an.cl,A:ASS 2007-'3: Amendments to. Australian Accounting .stanCiaras .arising fri;>m AAss·a [MSB 5, AAS.a 6, AASB '102, AASB 
1 oz, ,AASB ~ 1 ~. MSB ·127, AI\SB ~:34, AASa 1 ;36, AASB 1023 ang.AASB 1 0,38] '(applicable for annual reporting periods commenCing fr.om 1 January 2009). 
This •standard reph,lces:AASB t14and requires identfflcallon-oi operallrl9 segments on the basis·ofin!ernal reports .that are regularly reviewed by tlie eritlty's 
Branch Councllfor the purppses cif decision making. 

MSB 1(11: Rresentation of Flnimcial Statements, AASB 2007-8: Amendments to.Australlan.Accountirig Standards .arising from AASB' ~01,.and.MSB.2007· 
1 0; F.urther Ameni:lmenfs toAUsfralian Accounting Standards arlshjg from AASB 1 01 (aU applic~ble to annual r.epor'!lng periods commencing from 1 Januacy 
2009): TM reVIsed AAS B 101, ano amen!fments supersede the Pfilvlous ~SB 101 and i'e_peOr\e the com[!osltion.ofliF11lOCIJil! statement~ .inciUdiqgJhe 
lncluflion ofa-statementof.coniprehensil,le.lncome. There Vjilll be no me'asurement or reo.oQ_ni\ion ImpaCt oo fhe E1nifty. I fan entity has .made a• prior period 
adjuslment.or reclass.lfitalion, 'a third balance sheet·as at the beglnrilng·ofthe comparative period wlll be required. 

AASB 12:3; Borrowing CQsts·and AASB 200.7 -a: Amendments to Australlim AClleunting Standards arising from AASB 123 [AASB 1, AASB 1 01. AASB 107, 
AASI3 111, MSB 116 and MSB 138 and Interpretations 1 and 12] (appiicable for annual reportlng:periOds aomm!inclrig from 1 Janua!Y 2009). The revised 
AASB 123 has removedJhe optiGn io:e~pense·!lil borrowlng_o.ostsaml will :tl'terefore require the .ca!lllaltsatlon.ofalf'borrowlng costs directly attributable·tb The 
;:~cqulsitl.on, construction :m pro~ttclion of a qualltying,ass'eL .Managetnent.has ·determined that there will ba no e.ffe.ct•.on the:entlty-·as:a polisy of capitalising 
qualifying borrowing costs hasbeen·maintahied by the entity. 

o AASB :200Bc1: Amendments to Au.stralian Ae<;bunling;Stahda.rd - Sharecbased Payments: Vesting Conditions an!! Cancellation~ [AA$~;4) (appiiCflb]e for 
ahnt.Jal reporting pertoi;ts·commenclng from 1 Janu.a:ry 2009). This amendtnenlto AASB 2 clarifies lhat-V.esling·condltloriscouslst of·ser:~~ice and per[OJmance 
conditions qnly. Ojherele!ile.nts,of a $hare•based payment tr(!nsaction should thereJor:e be consideced for;the P.urpos_es otde!erm[ning fair :value. 
Can()ellatlons a(e,ajso i-equlred'!o'be lrel:!ted 1i:r {11esaroe riil!lnnefWh.ether .cancelled by thecentity or by anotber pa,rty. 

o MSEi 2QQ8,2: Amendments tp AUstr!!lian Aocounting Standards - Plittable Financial Instruments ana Obligations arising on Liquidation [AASB 7:, AASB 101, 
AASB ,132 & MSB 139Jidnti:<rpretatlt:!B 2] {applicable forF~nnual reporting periods commencing from 1 .January-2009), These amenilttients·lntrcitluce'an 
exception to'Jl1!1.d~finition afaJinanclid liability, to classify as equity ·Instruments certain pullable'financlallnstroments and certain other financial instruments 
lhal'lrnplilse ~rtobflgatiohlodeflverapro,rata shtne bfnetassets cinl9'upon liq!lidation. · · · ·· 

o AA;>B 200a·5: Amenpil'Jents ~o A!lWaUan Accounting Stilndards arisin_g from theP,nnuallmprove'f(li;jnts_Project(J!JIY '200QJ,.a,nd P\ASB 200S~B; Fur!ner 
Amendments ib Aust~alianAp:;ouritlr.ig.Standards arising frqrri UieArinucillfliproveinents Projecl(~ufy .2oO!l}detafl.numerous o91J·urgenl but'oeGe$5(;11)' 
ch~.nges toA€Courttfng Standards atislnirJrom ltle _lASS's .annuaiJmprovemenfs project. No changes are et<pet,t.(:!d !b-rnaterially .. affect the· entity; 

AASB.200B-8;.Amendments 'tPAus.tralif:ln Accounting Standards - Eligible Hedged Items [AASB ·139) (applicable for annual repOrting peiiods.commencifig 
from 1 July'4Q09): This.amerntment clarifies l)ow:.lheprlm;lples:lhat.deterrnine Whtilliar-a.•hedged risk or:porllon of cash flows Is eligible for deslgnallofi as a 
hedged item should _be iOpplled In particularsituatldns'and Is not expected 1o. materially-affect the entity, 

• AASB 200!1•13! Arnendmj!hts to Australian Ac<ibunthig Standards ;~rJ!llilg frbm AASB Interpretation 17 - bistributionl! of Non-caSh-Assets to OWners [AASB 5 
and.}\AS!3' 11. Ol '(<IP{lllcafile for..i!rinual r~p~rting pe:rklds commencingJrom 1 July 2009). This amendment requires that non-current assl;)ts helctror distribution 
to awn!!lr'S to .00 me(!SUreQ at Jlle lOWer .Of C<i!rylng Vajue.arid fair Va)ue [eSl? COStS \0 distribute. 

• AAsB lnlerpretation 15: Agreements Jor the Construction of Real Estate (!!pplicabletor-aMual Jeportingperiods'aomml:incing from 1 Jarll!acy 2_009). Under 
the lnterpretatlon, agreements for the construction of real estatEHlhi:!ll be accounted for'in accordancewith AASB 1 i 1 Wh~i'e lhe <\.greeme[ll'meets :thee 
definition of •construction Gontracr perAASB 111 andwhen the significant risks arid rewards of ownership of the W9rk ir'i prog£ess trapsf~do tlle:Qiiyer 
continuously as clmstructiort·progresses. Where the-reco1Jtiitlon reqOirements in r(l!atioh to aonstruqtibn are satisfied but ihe a~nelnnet!Fdo~s n.ot·.meei;Jhe 
definition of 'conslruelilln contract', revenue Is to ·be accounted fori~ ac.cordance with AASB 118. Management doesn.ot believe Ifni! th.lsWill [epresent a 
change of policy to the entity. 

" AASB lnt~rprelalion tfi; Hedges of a Net Investment In a Foreign Operalion-(appficable for annual r~poning perlodscommencing·from1 October 2001:1). 
ln.terpwfalion 16 applies tc;ventilies that hedge fCirei{JF) currency rJ!>I< arising f(om netlnvestme.nts In foreign operations and that want to' adopt hedge 
accoynting. The·lnterpretatfon provipes clarifying guidance on severallSSIJes in ac,counting for the hedge .of a net investmenun·a foreign operation .and is not 
expected to impact the entity. 

·AASB lrilerpretation 11: .Olstribulions· of l\lonccash assets to Owners (app)lcabie for annual repo.rtlng periods commencing from 1 July 2009). 

This gu_idanoo ;;~pplle!! prospectively only and clarii'iwthat non·.~sh dividends payabie should t;Je mell$_ured•aHhe fE!ir'value of the net assets to.be dlsttibute'd 
where:th!! difference bel1r1een~the fair value and carcying va.Jue.oflhe.assets Is recognised tn profit or loss. 

The entity does not anticipate early .adoption of any of the above reporting requirements anti does not expect them to have any material effeot on the entity's 
lfnancial :statements. 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH ABN: 44 673 398 674 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMElNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Not~2 Revenue and Otber Income 

Sales revenue 
- sale of goods 
- provl$1011 of services 

Total sales revenue 

Olher revenue 
r:nembersl'llp subscriptions and levies 
dividends receiv.ed 
-irtJeresJ race 1Ved 
coostruclion (evenue 
services revenue 
athenevenues 

Total olber revenue 
Total.sales revenue.am:l other revenue 

Other lf!CQme 
- galn on disposal nf property, plant and equipment 
- 9<!1hs Qn disposal ofnon•carrentinvestmertts 
- otherincome 

Total other income 

(a} Dividend revenue .from; 
-- associated companies 
- otliercorporatiohs 

joinhtenture entities 
Totatdividend revenue 

{b) lnterest-re:vemJe.from: 
- otherrelated parties 
- other.persbns 
- directors 

Totallnlerest revehlie on fihaiitial:assets not.atfali"o)claiU:!! through pr(lfit of loss 

No~e3 ·Profit before .Income Tax 

{a} E;xprmses 
h.ffiliatioh fees· 
h'lterest ex_pens·e on financial liabilities not"at fair value through profit of loss 

Compe.ny 
- Dire.otor related oompany 
- Otherpersons · 

T.otal interest-ex~ense 

lrl:'IP<~lrJJJej'lf of l.i9.iN:vrfentJnvestrnents 
F:oreigQ il · · translation ioss.es; 
f;lad,arid do de!Jts: 
·-· traile·reeervables 

Total 'bad;an<l dol,lktfuideb~ 
Rental expense omoperatln'gle!ises 

·mlniffiumJease -riaYments 
contingenuerttals 

- rental expense for sub,lease 

Contingent: rentals on;finanpe leases 
Researcf!,and· development co!\~!!-

( h) ·sighlflcanl 1'\eYenue-aM El(penses 
Tbe followlng·signiflcant ~evenue.·and expenseHtems -are relevant in explaining 
.the financial perfd'rmance~ · 

Note4 

2009 

Wfite.offof obsolefelnventol)' included wllhln cost of sales 
Loss oh disposal.of pfQpe,rty, plant anil eqvlpmeni · · 
Loss On olspes~l of nqn~curre~fiovestrnei:IIS: .. 

Key ManagementPersonnel Cbmpensatlcm 

Shott·l!:!rm Benefits 
$ 

Total •compensation 
2008 
Total oompensatlgn 

Note 

2(a) 
2(b) 

P6st·e01PI0Yment ·Beneljt 
$ 

2009 
$ 

17,007;5.48 

2ll7;\:!74 

68,366 

17;323,168 
17,32<t188 

226 

226 

247,2-74 

2009 
$ 

413.;467 

Other L:png-term Benefi\1? 
'$ 

2008 
$ 

15,491,357 

375;627 

73,946 

15,940930 
15,940,93(! 

fij3 

.533 

375,627 

375,627 

2.008 
$ 

3292()2 

Total 
$ 

1:535,491 

1.;409,429 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH ABN: 44 673 398 674 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Note5 Auditors' Remuneration 

Remuneration of the auditorfor. 
auditing or r.eviewing the financralreport 

- taxation services 
- due diligence services 

taxation services provided by related practice of auditor 

NoteS Cash and Cash Equivalents 

CURRENT 
Cash at bank and ln hand 
Short-term bank deposits 

The effective Interest rate on short4erm bank deposits was 4.45% (2008: 6.44%); 
these deposlts have an average maturity of 90 days. 

Reconcllia\ton of cal!tl 
Cash al the end of the fiitancial year as shown In the cash flow stiiltement is 
reconciled to items iri :the balance sheet·as follows: 
cash and cash equivalents 
Bank -overdrafts 

Note7 Trade and Other Receivables 

CURRENT 
Trade receiVables 
Provision for impairment 

Other receivables 
Total currenttrade and,otherreceivables 

NON·C!JRREJ\IT 
Trade receiVables 
Provision for .impairment 
Total nenccurrent trade and otlier;receivables 

(a) Provision Pof'lmpalrment of Receivables 

Note 

Note 

7(a) 

7(a) 

2009 
$ 

21,300 

2009 
$ 

1,00t!;669 
4,390;859 
5,397,528 

5,397,528 

20ll9 
$ 

115,862 

115,862 

t639,7j:)6 

1~539,796 

:ao.oa 
$ 

20,045 

2008 
$ 
318,086 

5;2:82477 
$,600,565 

5,600,5Ei5 

2008 
$ 

105,8'53 

1£15,863 

1.77.0;218 

G:Urrent trade .and term receivables are non,interestbearing loans and generally on 30 day terms. Non-curreottrade and term receivables are assessed for 
recover ability based on·tHe underlYing terms ·of the contract. A .provision for tmpafrtnent is recognised wh.eri ~here is objective evidence that an ·indi\lidual.irade or 
term receivable is Impaired. These amounts have been included in the :other -expenses item. 
Movement in the proliisiorHorlmpairment of receivables is as follows: 

Provision for lmpalrmen.t as at31 December 2007 
- charge for year 
- Writtenoff 

Provis.lon for bnpalrment as af31 E)ecember 20.08 
--" charge for year 
- Written·ort 

Provision (()r lmpairme.nt as at31 December 2009 

Creditrlsk 

$ 

The eritlty -has no signillcant concentra6qn of credit rls.k with rf(lspect to any :;~Ingle counterpar:ty or group .Of·ceunterparties.otherthan thosecreceiVabtes specifically 
provideq "for.and mentioned within Note 7. The maln.l?ource of credit.risk to.the entlty is considered to relate to~the class of assets described -as 'trade and.other 
receiv.ables'. 

The folloWing t~ble details the ~entity's trade and other reclelva.bles exposed to credltnsk (prior to collat(lral and 6jlifllt creditenil~ncements)·wilh againg.:a.nalysJ!! ;:~nd 
lmpairment:provlded fortheraon. Amounts arerionsideret! as 'past dtre' wheo the deb! has,not been.sattfed within the terms aqd condi!ioQs <;~greed Jletween the 
entity and the customer or counfE[r:paf\tto the-transaction. Receivabtes. il'\al arepastdu.e·<~re assesse~ forimpalrmeotby.:ascel:taining:se[vency6fthe·deblors and 
are provided for where there are specific clrcomstances indicating Jl:iafthe qebt-m<W not be fully repaid,to1he e11fity. 

The balances of r!;!celvi:ibles that remaln within 'initial trade terms (as cfetailed in the ta_ble) are considered to be of high credit quality, 

2009 

Other receivables 
Total 

2008 

Gross Amount 

$ 
11921775 
'1;92t775 

Gross Amount 

Pas.tdue and 
impaired 

Pas{ due and 
1mpaired. 

< 30 
s 
115,"'62 
11'5,662 

Past dl!e but O()t Impaired 
{days QVerdue) 

31-60 61-90 
$ $" 
~6.6117 
26§,1J7 

Past due but noum·paired 
(days overdue) 

<30 31-SO 61-90 
I $ I $ 1 

Other receivables 2 '720;658 1.05,853 8114,587 
Total 2,720,658 105;853~ '64'458T 

The entity does not hold any financial assets whose·terms have oeen renegotfaled, but whlcli would otherwise be. past due·orimpalrect. 

>9p 
$ 

1,539,7.96 
1;539,796 

>90 
$ 

1,710,216 
71;?70,lf18 

Within initial 
trade terms 

$ 

Within Initial 
'rade terms 

$ 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH ABN: 44 673 398.674 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

(b) Financial Assets classified a~; loans and receivables 

Trade and other:Receivables 
Total t;:urrent 

- Total Non-Current 

Financial Assets 

Notes Other Assets 

CURRENT 
Calls.ln arrears 
Prepayments 

NON-CURRENT 
Calls ,in arrears 
Prepayments 

Note9 Financial Assets 

NON~CURRENT 
Available-for-sale lin;mcial assets 
other Investments 
Total Non•Currenl.Assets 

(aj Avallabie•for-sale finanda!a~;sets 
listed investments, at fairvaiue: 
- snares rn listed :corporations 

Unlisted.investmeflts, atfiiir·value 
Total avaUable;fer•sal;;rfinanclal assets 

Note 

Note 

.9(a) 
9(b) 

2009 
$ 

381,979 
r.sa9;79o 
1;921,775 
1,921,775 

.2009 
$ 

267,185 
267,185 

2009 
$ 

s;ooo.;ooo 
a;ooo;ooo 

2008 
$ 

2008 
$ 

220,616 
220,616 

2!)08 
~r 

8QOQ.POO 
SQQtl;OQO . 

Available'for~sale f1naricii31 assets col1)prise investmE:~nts in the ordinary issued e<;~pital·of various entltie.s. Tt:tere are no fixed r!:~IUrn!! orfiXed maturity dates attache<! to 
these Investments. No 'il'iteotion to 'dispose ofany t.inllsied available-for-sale financial as.sets llXi!,lted at 31 December 2009, 

(b) Other investments 
Shares in associ~les 
Shares.injoii\1 ve!lt~re enlitlE!s 

Note 10 Plant.and Equlpment 

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Plant and EiqiJipment 
Atcost -
.Accumulated depreciation 
Accumulated lmpairinentlosses 

TotaiPiantaoil'EI:JLiiP111ilrit 

MEMBERSHIP DATABAS.E 
Metrill'ersnlp D<!tabaile System; 
At cost 
Accumulated depreeiatibn · 
Accumulated .. lmpaimJennosses 

Total Member§IJip Dat~bas.e 

OOMMUNJCATION~QUIRMENT 
Communrcatkm ~qufpmenr 
At cost 
Accumufate.d depre.ciation 
Accumulated impalimenllosses 

Total MemberShip Database 
Total Plant and .Equipment; Membership Database and Communication Equipment 

a,ogo;ooo 

8,000,000 

2009 
$ 

262,825, 

(t74:V01) 

88,124 

600,5.05 
(143;26.4) 

4'57,241 

23~,2:79 
{7f,7'84) 

.8,000,000 

8;ooo;ooo 

2008 
•$. 

£41,468 
(21:4,639) 

121> !!29 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH ABN; 44 673 398 674 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

(a) MovemJ>ntsln Carrying Amounts 
Movement in the carcylng amounts forceach class of property, plant and equipment between 1he beg1nning and the eno of the current financial year 

Balance at 1 Januacy 2008 
Additions 
Disposals 
Revaluation.incrementsl(decrements) 
Depreciation expense 
Capltallseo borrowing cost and depreciation 
Balance·at 31 December 2008 
Additions 
Disposal$ 
RevalUation ·incrementsJ(de.crements) 
Depreciation expense 
Writebacl< on disposals 
Capitafised borrowing cost and depreciation 
Car!Yiilg amount al31 December 2009 

(b) Membership Data bas!! System 

Plantand Membership Communication 
Equipment Database Equipment 

$ $ $ 
122,364 
71,140 
55,208 

(tl6,(l75) 
{55,208) 
126,829 

29.673 
{108,316) 

(66,378) 
108,316 

600,505 239,27S 

{143,264) (71,784) 

457,241 167,495 

Total 
$ 
122,364 
71,140 
5.!i,208 

(66,675) 
(55,208) 
126;a29 
86.9,457 

(108,316) 

(283,426) 
108,316 

The entity has co-ntracted for the design and implementation of a new Membership Database management ,system. It is considered thai this system Js,an asset or 
the entity and accordingly the expenditure incurred wlllbe capitalised an~ amortised over Us useful life. 

(c) lmpa!l'liUlritLosses 

The1otal1mpalrmentloss recognised in the income statement during the prior period <;~mounted to nil and is separstely presented in the Jncoml!! stalemeot as 
impairment of plant and equipment. 

Note 11 Trade and Other Payables 

CORRENT 
Oosecured liabilities 
Unearned Income - members' subscriptions paid In advance 
svndry p<;~yabie ande accrued expenses 
Net GSTLiability 

NON-CURRENT 
Onsecured llabilitie.s 
Trade payables 
Sund!Y payal51es imdaccrued expenses 
AnnUal leave 

(a) FlnancialllablliUes at 11morti.sed cost clas.slfied as trade anti other payables 
Trade .and other pa,yables 

Total 'Current 
- Total NoncOurrent 

tess 'annual leave entitlements 
Financial .liabi.lilies aS'lrade and other payables 

Note 12 Other Financial Liabilities 

CURR.ENT 
Financial guarantees 

Note 

1t(a) 

11(a) 

Note 

15 

2009 
$ 

168.D91 
1,091,978 

163;141 
1,423,2.10 

1,423,210 

'1.423210 

2009' 
$ 

2008 
$ 

243,{!15 
1,0.Q!},.069 

.186;303 

1,43.a;907 

1,43.!),907 

2QQ8 
$ 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNIONVJCTORIAN BRANCH.ABN:4467.3 398 674 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Note13 

CURRE~T 

Provisions 

Short-tenn Employee Benefils 
Opening balance at beginning of year 
Addilional.provisions raised during year 
Amounts used 

Balance at end of the year 

NON-CURRENT 
Long~term Employee Benefits 

Opening balance at beginning O:f year 
Addillon<~l provisiMs raised during year 
Ampunts used 

Balance:atem:l of the year 

Analysis ofTot~l Provisions 
cutrerit 
l\lon,current 

Provision tor Long-term Employee Benefits 

2009 
~ 

1;830,911 
216,059 

2,046,970 

.200Q 
$ 

2,046,970 

2,04!>;970 

2008 
$ 

1;693,104 
137;807 

1;830 911 

2008 
$ 

1,.830;911 

1;830,911 

A provision has 'been reoegniseo for employee benefits relating to long Sf!rlilce IQave for employees, In ca[culaliJ')g the .preser1t val.ue oH\.Itjlre cash Oowsl{l .respect ol· 
long seniice leave, tbe probability of roriirserliicelea\le belnJrtaKen is based upon historical data. The measurement and ;ecognijlon ·qnterla .for ernployf;le benefits has 
peen included lhNote 1(!!)• 

Note 14. .Capital ana Leasing Commitments 

(a) .Oper'!ting lease Commitments. 
Non-cancellable oper'aling leases contracted for 'but not 
capltallsed in the. limmcial stab;;ments 
Payable - minimumJease payments 

not later .than 12' morllhs 
between 12 menl~!! ~nd five years 

- gr~ater 'than fJVe years 

(b) Capital Expenditure Cmnmltments 
·capilli I expen;:iihire commltm~llts cohtl:acted for. 
Plant aod equlpmentpiirt;:liases 
Capi!aYexpenditure·projects 

P<!Yable 

Note 15 

o.Ot later ttii.ln 12-months 
betweeri·12 months and five years 
.greater than five years 

Contingent tiabllltles Jihd Contingent ASs.ets 

Estim!lle.s oHhe pp~emliai .financial effectot c0nlingent Q!lbililles that rnaY~beCQ.me 
payablf!; 

Contingent '.liabilities 

Autopay arrangement 

Note 16 segment Reporting 

Not~r 

ZQ09 
$ 

323;752 
385,'119 

2so;l)oo 
.250,000 

250;00Q 

200~ 
$ 

soo.;ooo 

The entity operates predominately .in orie business and {leographical ·segment being the :proVision, ,of ur)iQn services "(o its members In Victoria, Austral fa. 

2008 
$ 

290,287 
225,380 

2008 
$' 

''500;000 
,ooo;ooo 



Note 17 

AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH ABN: 44 673 398 674 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Cash Flow Information 

2009 2008 

(a) Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations 
with Profit after Income Tax 
Profit after Income tax 
Non-cash flows in profit 

Depreciation 
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Nel.\)aln oh dispos-al of investments 

Changes· in assets and liabilities 
(lncrease)fdecrease In' trade and term debtors 
(lncrease)/decrease in other assets 
lncrease/(decrease) in payables 
lncreasef(decrease) in provisions 

{b) Credit Standby Arrangement and Loan FaciJJtles 
The entity has a bank overdraft and commercial blll fllcllity amounting to nil. 

Note 111 Events After the Balance Sheet Date 

$ $ 

(569,682) 521,!,113 

283,426 66,675 

(226) (533) 

568,461 (204,543) 
(46,569) ·96,548 
(15,697) 515,893 

(a) No known matters or circumstances have arisen sinpe the end of tbe financial year which significantly-affected or may significantly affect the branch's operatlons, 
results of those operations or the stal!l ofaffairs of the branph in subsequent financial years. 

'(b) Tclie flnanc:;ia:l report was a\Jth.orisea for issue on 14 May 201o.by management. 

Note 19 'Information 1o b.e provided to !VIembers or General Manager 

In accordance with requirements oBhe Fair Work. (Registered Organlsalions) Act 2009, the attention of members is drawn to the provisions of svb-septlons (1·). (2)and 
(3} ofsectioh 2"72which read as follows: 

(1) A member of a reporting unit, orthe General Manager, may apply to the reporting unit for specified prescribed Information In relation to ihe:reporting unitto·be.made· 
available to the person making the applioation. 

{2) the appll(lallqn mu.st be To wrltln_g ;;~n~ must specify the peiiod within which, and the manner win which, the information .Js to be made available. The period 
,must not be less than :14 days artert)1e application Is given to the. reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting u.nlt must comply with an applica!ion made under subsectit;ln (1), 

Note20 Officers Remuneration 

In accordance with the Reponing Guidelines made under the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 employee benefits to holders oJ.oflice ofthe reporting 
unit for the year ended 31 December 2.009 was $~,535491. 

-In accordanc::e with the Reporting Guidelines made underlhe Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 200.9 employee benefits to emplqyees'(olher th_ar'l ho)ders 
of office) of the reporting un1t for 1he year ended 31 Decernber2009 was $6,084 1960~ 



Note21 Levies 

ALJSTRAI..IAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN 6RANCH ABN: 44 673 398 674 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST ATEM.ENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Pui>.Uc Educatl.on Campaign Levy 

The 1997 Branch Conference determined !hill a levy ofall members be struck in accordance Wllh AEU Federal Rules for the purpose offunding,the AEU Victorian 
Branch's Public Education Campaign. 

Asepa[ale fund hl!S been estabilshed for this purpose. 

The levy was set at $20 p.a. for members.employed 0.6 and above and $'10 for memberscemployed 0.5 or below. 

The lell}' applied .for three years commencing on Srd August 1991; On 51h·AUgust2ooo Branch conference declcled to ronlinue lhelevy 111 'ils·present 'form untiltfie.end 
ofihe catenaar year 200.3. On 19th Ju(y2003 Branch Conference extended the levy·In·its presenHorm until the end oHhe calendarye·ar 2!l06. On alh-July2oo6 Branch 
Conference extended the levyindefinitely,.and increased 1he levy to $25.00 per annum for members employed0.6 and above ana $12;50 for members employed o.!5 or 
belOW; 

Opening Balance 

Add funds oollectedcfrom levy 
Add donation and interest Income 

T-otal Junds·avallable 
Less amounts paid for Public Education pli(pOses 
Funds ava11able 1or Publla£du~tion campalgo purposes _as at 31 D!i!ciember 
Public EduClatlc:m baok acoount at yaarend 
Add amounts underl{over) remitted to Public Education account by AEtJVfc Branch 

Sourca oHynds 
Excess of income over:campafgn spending 
Reduction in bank account 
Increase in amount owlhg by Public Education Campaign tQ ,t\EU VicBran¢h 
Redllcjion In amouni owing by AEU Vic Branch to Public ·Educatltm Camr>aign 

~noffunds 
Ex~ss of campalgn sp!!nding over Income 
Reduction-of amount owing by Public Education campaign to.AEU Vic Branch 
Increase in·amount owed by f>iEUVIc Branch 
Increase ih ban~ account 

Certified Agreement Levy 

2009 
$ 

656,764 

aall;a18 
3!l;3(i6 

928;124 
1,58(;88'8 

-178,613 
-1,406)~75 

'1;361,,544 

44.7.31 

749;511 

77398 
826,90!) 

8:2$;909 

2008 
$ 

427.,705 

840;484 
19,724 

:860,'208 
1,287,913 
-631,149 

534,~3!) 

122,129 
65l),764 

229;059 

'8!3';993 
122,129 

j9;1l37 
2M.o59 

Branch council on 2(lth March 1.999 detertninea that a leYy:ofall mem~rs i,nfhe primary and seoondary sj;Cior~ h11 struckin ;;~ccordance withAEU FederaU3ranehrules 
forlhe purpose oHt.maing tfle A.EIJ VlAtOflan B(;lnJ:h!!> Certilled.Agreeme.[lt Campaign. 

As~parnie fl)nd was establlshecl'for this purpose, 

the levy was set at$1 oo per·primary or secondary memherwith pro rata amounts appflellto lhose employed part tim!'!. 

The levy wi!s due .and payable by 30th J_une 1 Q99 .. 

OpenilJg Balance 
Add dooa~ion a~(l intere$1 in_com(;l 
Total funds available 
Less amounts paid .for Certified A.greementlevy. purposes 
Ft:lfids avail;;~ble tor CertifiedAgreemenU::~;vy purposes as at '3~ O.ecember 
Certified Agreement levy b;Jt'lk -'!c~unt at year end 
Add amounts uodetl(ovet)remitted to -certified Agreement LeV¥ acceiint 
by ABU Vic Blanch 

Source ciffunds 
Rtlductlon in amo.untowin,Q by AEU VIc aranchllncreasein amount owed to AEU Vic Brancfi 
Donation and !nterestlncome 

Application -of funds 
Increase In :bank account 
Reduction in amount owed to AEU Vic Branch/Increase In amouhHlwed by f\EU Vic Branch 

2009 
$· 

25,3!1-1 
89o 

26~37 

;237 

26237 

26,237 

896 

896 

ll9_6 

2,008 
~ 

24,q76 
1_;263 

2~,341 

2 3.1 

13,000 
1,26~ 

14,263 

14,26$ 



Note 22 

AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH ABN: 44 673 398 674 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED .31 DECEMBER 2009 

Financial Risk Man(\gement 

The entity's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits w1th banks, local money market Instruments, short-term investments, accounts receivable and payable, loans 
to and from subsidiaries, bills and leases. 
The totals for eli!ch category of fin;;~nciial instruments, measured in accordan.ce With AASB 139 as detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are·as 
follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Loans and receivables 
Available-for-sale financial assets 
- Equity investments 

Financial Uabrlit1es 
F!nimclallfabilitles at amortised cost 
- Trade .and other payables 
- BorroWings 

Financial Risk Man<~gement Policies 

6 
7(b) 

9(a) 

11(a) 

2009 

5,397;526 5;C:l'00,565 

The entiiy's GVer<!U dsk management .strategy seekstoassistthe entity .in meeting its financial target~;, whilst minimising potential adverse-effects on finan~<ial 
performanee. Risk manage~ment policies are approved and reviewed by Branch council on a regular l:iasis. These Include tha.creditriskpoliCiesand Mure·cash flow 
requirements. . 

Specific Flnanciai.Risk Exposures 1\!Jd Manl)getnent 
The main risks-the entity 'is expose(! to lbroqgh its financial Instruments 11re interest rate risk, liqUidity risk and:credit risk. 

(a) Jntfltest rate risk 
Exposure to Interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recoynised at reporting dale wherebY. a fUture c;bange inJntereslr!\tes will affect fuJure 
cash flows or tnefair value of fixed rate financial Jnstruments. The enUty is also exposed to earnings volalil!ty·on (l~;>aUng rale liJsliltmeots. 

The neteffec!ive variable interest rate borrowings (I e. unhedged debt) exposes toe entity to hiterestrate riskwbfch willlrru:~aot future cash llows and Interest charges 
and is indicated by the following flo;atlng Interest rate financialliabllitles: 

2008 

B.anK overdrafts 

(b) LiqUidity risk 
Liquidity risk arises fromthe possibilitythat.the eolity might.encounter difficulty in settling_ its debts or otherWise meeting its obligatinns .relatedtoJinanclallil!lbilitles: 
Th.e entity manages this .risk thtough tffe followif!.g mech~mlsms: 

• preparing forward looking cash floW analyses In relation to its opere:Uioilal, investing and financing activilies; 
• mcmlloring undniwn crediHa<:illties; · 
• obtaillfo.Qf\.lnding from a variety of.sources; 
• m;;~lntainjng areputable ereditpto61e; 
• .rnal1aglng credit risk related to 'financial a~;sets; 
• only investing sutprus cash wi.lh majqtfinan(lialim;Jituti~ms; <:~nd 
• cohipa~ngtbe ml,lturity profile 6ffinanciaUiabillties with the realisation profile .of finandiatassets. 

The tables below £efleotan undi!IGOunted .contractual·maturity analysis for financial liabilities. Financial guarantee llabllitles.are treated as PE!Yilble0n d~man<lsinee 
the enlity has no GQntroi over.th'e timing of any potential setuernenl of the liability •. 

:Cash flows ·rea]l~;e!Hrom financial assets reflect manageman.t's e~p!'m!ation as to the liming .oJrealisall(:m. Actual tlmlng may .the~refore dlffer.ft:om tha't disclosed. The 
timing ofcasll:flows presented in the lable~o settle financial tlabflltles refleatlhe.e<~rllest contractual setflement.datesan~ i!o noi reflect management's expeol!lll0ns 
that bankin_g raalliti!'ls will roll forward. 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH ABN: 44 673 398 674 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Financial liability and financial aseet maturity analysis 
Within. 1 Year 1 ~o 5 y_ears over 5 .~ears 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 
Financial liabilities d!!e for 

$ $ $ $ $ $ 
payment 
Bank over.drafts ar'ld loans 
Bills or exchange and 
promls$ory nolell 
Trade a11a o!her payaoles 
(excluding est.annualleave) 
Lease liabilities 
Financial guarantees 
Total contractual outflows 
less bank overdrafts 
Total expected outflows 

Financial Assets -cash 
flows realisable 
Cash and cash equivalents 5,397,528 5;600,565 
TraQe, term and :lo;:m 
receJv;:~bles 381,979 950;440 1,539,796 1,770,218 
Other currenl assets 267,185 .220,616 
Total anticipated inflows 6,046,692 :6,771,621 1,539,796 1,770,218 

Net (outflow) /Inflow on 
!lnanclallnstruments 6;046,692 6,771,621 1;539.796 1,770;21!1 

(c) Por_e!gn exch;J.nge risk 
The entity is noi exposed lo flurituatlons in foreign currencies. 

(d) Cre.dlf·risk-
The enlityhaJ.no signlfi~lil concentration of credit risk Wilh any sJngle counterpatty or group of counterparttes. 

Total 
2009 2008 

$ $ 

'5,397,528 5,600,565 

1,921,715 2,720,651) 
'267,185 .220;616 

7,566,488 &,541,839 

7,g66,481l !3.541,839 

Trade and other receivables that are neither pasi due or impaired are considered to be of high credit quality. Aggregates or. such amounts-are ·<1s de(a.Ued.at Note 7. 

The anliJy ooes not have any male rial CJedit risk e)!Cposure to.any ~inglo r(?celyable or group or receivables under fioanciaiJrrstrt~m!!lntsentered-lnto b.y lha entity. The 
trade receiv;~biell balances at 31 December2009 and 31 December.200B do no! Include any counterparties with external .credit ratirtgs.cCustomersarerassessed for 
creditworthiness using the crlterla detailed above. 

Credit risk related to bal<1hCes with banks and other financiaLlnslilutl.ons:is managed oy the entity In aceordancirwith approved Branch poli_cy. Sllch poljciy requires 
.that surplus funds are only invested with counterpaities with a Standard antl Poor's fS&P) rating of at·ieasiAA" The fqllowing.table provides rorormailon r1:1garding· 
the credit risk relaUng ·to cash and money ·markel securities based on S&P counterparty .credit rating$. 

C.ash and cash equivalents 
MRated 

- ARated 

(~} Prlce risk 
The entityJs not expe>sed to any malerial commodity price·risk 

Note 
.200.Q 

$ 

5;397,528 

200.8 
$ 

5;600j565 

.5;600,565 



Net Fair Values 

Fair value estimation 

AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH ABN: 44 673 398 674 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

The fair values of financial !lssets and financial liabilities are presented in the following table and ean be compared to their canying values as presented In the 'balance 
sheel Fair values are those amounts at which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing p!!rties in an arm's length transaction. 

Fair values derived may b!! based on information 1hat ~s estimated .or subject to judgment, where changes-in assumptions may have a m;;~teriallmpacton the amounts 
estimated. Areas of judgment and the assumptions have been detailed below. Where possible. valuation information used to calculate fair value -Is extracted from-the 
market. with more reliable information available from markets that are actively traded. In this regard, fair values for listed securities are obtained from quoted market bid 
prices. Where securities are .unlisted and no ·market quotes are available, fair value is obtained using discounted cash ftow analysis and other valuation techniques 
commonly used by market participants. 

Differences between fair values and ca_rrying values of financial instruments with fixed interest rates are due to the change 1n disc.oun.t rates being applied by the market 
since their initjal.recognltion by the entity. Most of these instruments which are carried at amortised cost (i.e. term receivables, loan liabilities) are to be held un.til maturity 
ana lherefo_re .the net fair value figures calcul<~ted bearlittle relevance to the entity. 

2009 2008 
Net Carrying Net Canying 

Footnote Value Net Fair Value Value Net Fair'Value 
$ $ $ $ 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents (i) 5,397,528 5,397,528 5,600,5.65 5,600)i65 
Trade -ahd .other receivables (i) 1,921,775 1,.921;775 2;720;658 2,720,658 
Loans .ahd advances - rela.ted parties (il) 
Investments- av!lll!lble for sale (iii) 8,ooo,ooo .8,000;QOO 8,000;000 8,QOO,OOO 
Total finMciall'!sse.ts 15,319;303 15,319,303 16,321,223 16,321,223 

Financial liabilities 
Trade and other payables (i) 1,423;2~0 1 ,423;21 0 1,438,907 1;438,907 
Bills of:excnange and promissory notes (iv) 
Lease liability- (v) 
Bank debt ('.') 
Totalfinanc!al liabilities 1,423,2'10 1.'123,210 1,438,907 1,438,907 

The fair Vl'liues disclosed in 1he above tabl!l have been determined based on the following methodologies: 
{i) Cash and cash equivalents, trade and-other receiv;;~bles and trade and o.ther pay;;~bles are short term instruments In nature whose carrying value. is equlvalen.t.to fait 

value. Trade·a_nd other payables el(clude amounts providedfor,relatlng tpannualleave whi.ch is not considere!l a f)nandal\nstrument. 
(ii) Discounted ·cash flow models are.uJ>ed to determine 'the fair values of loans and adv.<~nces. Discount rate~ used •on !he calculations are based on-interest rates 

cexisting at.repqrting ,da!e·for similar types~~ lo;:ms and advQnces. Oifferences beJw!len fa_ir values and carrying Values largely represent movements in tile erreclive 
-lnter.es.t rate-ilet!lrmined on iniiial.recogriltion and current·market rates. 

(iii) For'llsted avallal)ie-for-sale financial assets, clbs1ng quoted bi!;fprlces at reporting date are used. Branch Council have determined that the fair values of unlisted 
.:<~vailableofor-sale financial ass·ets at-reporting date can be reliably measure_d, asJhere is an active market for-these-Investments. 

(iv) Discounted cash .ftow models .are,used that Incorporate a yield c.urve appropi'iate to the remaining· maturity ofthedeberiture, bill or promissory note. 
(v) Fair values are oeterrnloed using a discoun!etl cash ftoW model .incorporating cutrent.commercial borrowing rates. The fair value of fixed rate bank debt wilt di{fer .to 

•ca:rryin~ values. 

Sensitivity ana'/ysls 
The followh"'g table 'illustrates sensitivities to the entity's e~posures to-changes in interest rates, exchange rates.an!JCQmmodity and equity prices. Ttletable.indicates the 
in;pact on bow profit.and equity values reported at balance date Wo!Jid have .. been affected by changes In the relevanrrisk varlable that management.con·siderslo be 
reasonably possible. These-~ens_itivities assume thatth.e movemenHn .a particular variable i:> lndependent;of other variables. 

Year ended 31 Oecernber 200.9 
+1- 2% in interest rates 
+!" 2% in·llst.ed liwestments 

Year ende.d ~31 December.2008 
'>}- 2% in h'lterest.rates 
+1-.2% inlisled iiwestments 

ProfTt 
$ 
76,90~ 

Profit 
$ 
87,586 

The-above interest 'rate se-nsitivity·aitalysis has been p_erformed on the assumption that all other variables remain unchanged. 

EquitY 
$ 

Equity 
$ 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH ABN: 44 67l3.98 674 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

Note 23 Detailed Income and Expenditure Statement 

INCOME Note 

Certified Agreement Levy 
Interest 
Membership Subscriptions 
Otherlncome 
Profill(!.oss) on Sale of Furniture & Equipment 
Worksafe Funding 
Work Partners Rebat~s 
Donations ·Vic Bushfire 
Public Education Campaign levy 
Total Income 

EXPENSES 
Affiliation Fees 
Campaigns 

Certified. Agreement Levy 
Other Campaigns 
Public Eduel:\Jion Campaign Ll!\ly 

Cornmu.nica.Uqns·:: Telephone, Fax & Internet 
Cohfe!"E1nces 

Arinuai·Confe'rence 
QJher ,conferen~s & Forums 

[)ooallons 
Equipment 

Furniture, Computer & Equipmet~t Sundry l.tems 
Depreciation. 
Leas.e-& Rental Costs 
Maintenance Of Computers & Equipment 

Funcli.ons and Farewells 
LegaiExpenl!e~ 
Ubrarylinforcmatlon Services 
Membership Services 
Motor Vef\idle Fleet Costs 
=Misc.ellaneous 
=Offiee Expenses 

:Audit 
B.ad Debfs Written Off 
B<!ni<.Charges 
Offise 1Requisiles & Paper 
Postage 
Slibscriplion Collection costs 

Publications. 
Regional Offiaes.; Rent, Rates, Telephone; etc 
Rent and Ouigolngs: Tien~rry Crescent 
.sa:rarles 

Annual Leave 
Frlnge Benetns Tax 
Insurance 
Leadership &.Others 
Lqlig $erylce Leave 
Otlw Salary costs 
Payroll Tax 
Sick leave 
S~ff Bene!ltsReserva 
superannuation 
Training· 
Teams 
Workcover 

Structures 
Travel Expenses 
Total Expem;es 
Operatlng"Sutplus/{Loss} 
tmpairmenn::~ffinancial as-sets 
SURPLUS/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 

Note 24 Entity Details 

The reglsJeted offiriepflh,e £mlity is: 
1\ustrallan E:dvsaflon l:lnlonVictonan Br<;~nch 
1 :12 T reneny Cr!*Jcent 
AB~OTSFORD VIC 30.67 

The principal place of business is: 
Australian Educatlon'Union Vit:totian Branch 
112 Trenetry Crescent 
ABBOTSFORD VIC 30.67 

21 

21 

21 

21 

2009 
e$ 

8Q6 
247 ;274 

16,026,621 
6.8,36!) 

226 

·10,017 
41,8.90 

928,124 
17,323,414 

1,6.83,475 

181;395 
178,613 
.214;1.79 

11!;5.6.6 
71;376 
19;090 

53.'59~ 
.283;426. 

8l,067 
122,95.0 

11,30.3 
:830,557 

18,963 
"3,;?6!?.242 

;67!3;041 
4,739 

21,300 

665 
'55,35;1 
16,2$3 

120;419 
51l9>691 
M1.57o 
a4!l;52·1 

98,021. 
i38;378 
61i.054 

6,~76;319 
264,599 
'94;960 

331;527 

1,044;8·1'5 
sa.~as 
10;6.51 
'78i898 

291;,24~ 
61};'949 

17,p93;:096 
(!!99)662) 

(5(;9,682) 

200.11 
$ 

1,26.3 
3'1:5,627 

14,449Jl86 
73;946 

.533 
180~000 

.86.0,206 
15,9.41,41:13 

1.;697.,860 

69M87 
631,149 
180,491 

10,605 
63,457 
45}800 

313]605 
66,675 
M.827 
24;86!1 
4~927 

549;Q15 
'23;5p3 

1.20MS8. 
499,972 

3;98.7 

20;045 
50 

1,986 
46;6.~9 
85,5.4ff 

tCJ5,841 
§f17Ml 
174,5$17 
'327,310 

45,305 
'358 

57;.665 
'l!;~siAo9 

101}3_51 
'151,946 
3:33,149 

914 

938,302 
15,003 

11?,962 
280,42~ 
62,318 

15:,419,550 
!l21,9i3; 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION 
Victorian Branch 112 Trenerry Crescent Abbotsford 3067 

PO Box 363 Abbotsford 3067 

telephone: 03 9417 2822; 1800 013 379 fax: 1300 658 D78 web: www.aeu.yic.asn.au email: melbourne@aeuvic.asu.au 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENI 

On 14 May 2010 the Committee of Management of the Australian Education Union Victorian Branch being the AEU Victorian 
Branch Co~;~ncil passed the following resolution In relation to the general purpose financial report (GPFR) of the reporting unit 
for tile financial year ended 31 December 2009. 

The AEU Victorian Branch Council declares in relation to the GPFR that in its opinion: 

(a) 

{b) 

(c) 

(d) 

the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelh1es .of the Industrial Registrar for purposes .of 
section 270 of the RAO Schedule; 

the financial statements and notes give a true and fair lli.ew of the flnat'lcial performance and financial position of 
the reporting unit for the fihancial year to which they relate; 

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and when they 
become d~;~e and payable; and 

during the financial year to which the G.PFR relates and since the end of that year: 

(i) meetingQ of the committee of manageme,nt were held in accordance with tt:le rules of the organisation 
including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(ii) the fillancial affairs of the reporting .unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation 'including the rules of a branch ,concerned; and 

'(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit 'have been kept atld maJntained in accordanG.e wfth the RAO 
&chedlile and th~ RAO·Regulatlons.; and 

{iv} the info.rmation sought in. any request of a member of the r.eporting unit or a Registrar duly made 
under section 272 ofthe RAO $chedule has be.en lurnislied to the member of Reglslrar; and 

(V) there has 'been compliance with any order for inspection of finanCial r.ecotds made by fhe 
Commission under section 273 of the RAO Schedule. 

(e) in relation tc5 recovery of wages actiVIty: 

(i) there ·has been no sucn activity unsertaken by the reporting unit. 

For:Committee of Management 
Title of Office held: 

Signature: 

Date: 14 I 05 1 2010 

Brian John Henderson 
Bran~h Secretary 



CUARMAN YAltTNEltS 
Acc.ouf'l't<ilnt$ & Adv1sors 

AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCl:I 
ABN 44 673 3,98 674 

AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION VICTORIAN BRANCH 

We have audited the financial report.ofthe Australian Education Union Victorian Branch for the financia{yc;,ar 
ended 31 Dec~mber 2009. The financial report includes the financial statements of the Union. The Committee 
ofManagement isresponsible for the financial report. We have conducted an independent audit ofthe~flnancial 
report in order to exp1·ess an opinion on it to the members of the Union. 

Co.mndttee o.fManagemenf's and Branch Secreta1·y1s Responsibility for the FhJancial Report 

TJ1e committee ofm<!nagement ai1d branch secretaryoftbeA.ustraHan Education Union Victorian Branch are 
resp0nsib le for tbe··preparation and fair presentation ofthe finaneialteport in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards and the Fait• Work (Registered 'OI'ganisatio11s) Act.2009; ih1srQ~ponsibilicy includes 
establishing -and n\alntaining intemal control .relevant to,th!:lpreparation and fair presentation ofthe financial 
repmt that is .free ·from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting,and applying .appropriate 
account:ing poticies;_and making accounting estunates that are reasonable ill the cii'c.umstances, 

Auditor'.s Responsibility 

Our responsjbili:ty i;s lo express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit.. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Tbese.AuditingSlandards require that we comply 
witltrelevant ethical requirements relating to autlit engagements:and plan and petf.mm the audit to obtam 
reasonable asstttance whether the financial re.port is free from. material misstatetiletit. 

An audit involves pe1:fonning procedures to obtain audit·evidence aboutfheamounts atld disclosures in tl1e 
financial nipmt. The procedures selected depend on the au(ii~or'sjudgemefitJnclur,!ing.tbe·assessmentofthe 
risks of material mis.st@iment ofthe financial report~ \Vhether due 'to fraud .or err.or. ·tn making those risk 
,assesshl!ilnts, the auditor considers. internal control relevant to the entify's"preparatlon and fair presentation 
@fihe financial repol'f in order to design audltpt'ooodures 1hat are apprqpl:i.ate mJhec.ircumm-a.nce.s, but not tor 
the purpos~ or.~Xcpres.sing an opinion on tl!e effectiveness qft)le etitity's .interruil.cohtrol. An auditalso 
includes ~v-aluating tht,i appropriateness of"accouoting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made-by the conuriftte.e ofmanagernenf~and branch secretary). as willas eyalunting the trverall 
presentation ·ofthe fin~u:tcia] report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is,sufficientand approptiate to provide ahasis:for 0\!1' 

audit op]nion. 

Independence. 

In condu~ting out' audit, we have complied With the independence requiremetits ofthe Fair Work .(Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009. 

Suite4 
1 0-12 Chapel Street 
Blackburn VrctorJa 31 3.0 
Emafl 
mail@ch<rtmanpartn-ers.com.au 
wwviu::harmal\piJr_tner5;com.~ru 

Postal Address 
PG Box 341 
Blackburn Vtctoria .SBO 

Channno PartnerScl'i.y,t,t;l 1\.Qi. p8l7480~8.Jdi.N. 74749.304 613 
liebllity.Jllnlted•liy.a ~cheo\eappr~;ve\'f.under Protes.sil:mal Stanaards tegfs(alloh 

Telephone 
(03)9878 82{)0 
Racsfmlle; 
{03).987'8 8400 

Diredofs 
f.A. Tiemey, FCA 
N.CiJ . .Jol'lnston, CPA 
M:P. Bars~m,:CA 
W;C Goodwin, CA 



Audit Opinion 

ln our opinio!1, the general purpose financial rep011 of Australian Education Union Victorian Branch is 
presented fairly in accordance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards and the requirements imposed 
by Part 3 of Chapte1· 8 of the Fair Work {Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

Charman Partners 
Partner : Mark Peter Barson 
Registered Company Auditor 
Member of the Institute ofChadered Accountants in Australia holding a current Public Practice Certificate 

Date: :J:;l ~ M~ )tot() 




